IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner

vs.

BRUCE BELVIN,

Respondent.

CASE NO.: SC06-593

L.T. NO.: 4D04-4235

APPELLANT'S INITIAL BRIEF

CHARLES J. CRIST, JR. ATTORNEY GENERAL Tallahassee, Florida

CELIA TERENZIO BUREAU CHIEF, WEST PALM BEACH Florida Bar No. 0656879 RICHARD VALUNTAS Florida Bar No. 0151084 Assistant Attorney Generals 1515 North Flagler Drive 9th Floor West Palm Beach, FL 33401 (561) 837-5000

Counsel for Appellant

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner, the State of Florida, was the prosecution in the trial court, the appellee before the circuit court, and was the respondent in the Fourth District Court of Appeal. Petitioner will be referred to herein as "petitioner" or "the State." Respondent, Bruce Belvin, was the defendant in the trial court, appellant before the circuit court, and was the petitioner in the Fourth District Court of Appeal. Respondent will be referred to as "respondent."

In this brief, the following symbols will be used:

R.E. = Response Exhibit (to State's 4th DCA response)

P.E. = Petition Exhibit (to 4th DCA cert. petition)

- 6 -

SUMMARY ARGUMENT

Point I The breath test affidavits provided for in section 316.1934(5) of the Florida Statutes do not fall within the "core class of testimonial statements" referred to in Crawford. The circuit court properly upheld the admission of the breath test affidavit into evidence because it is a nontestimonial public record, which is akin to a business record. Even if the breath test affidavit in this case was testimonial, it was properly admitted it into evidence because (1) Technician Smith was unavailable and (2) respondent had the "prior opportunity for cross-examination" via deposition (which he refused to utilize). The decision in this case involves certiorari review Point II of a circuit court appellate decision. Under this "second tier" review, respondent was required to demonstrate the circuit court's decision violated a clearly established principle of law resulting in a manifest injustice. The Fourth District's conclusion was clearly erroneous because the application of the "principle of law" set forth in Crawford is anything but "clearly established," especially when the opinion expressly refrained from defining "testimonial statement."

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

On July 31, 1998, Officer Jonathan Lloyd of the Jupiter Police Department stopped respondent's vehicle in the early

<u>- 7 -</u>

morning hours for speeding and failing to maintain a single lane. (R.E. A, p. 8-11). Respondent gave a breath test sample, and the results of the tests measured 0.165, 0.144, and 0.150. Id. at 11-12; (R.E. B). At trial, a surveillance videotape from Officer Lloyd's vehicle was entered into evidence. (R.E. A, p. 16). The parties stipulated that respondent "gave the repair slip for the vehicle registration and insurance. Vehicle information requested twice. Defendant appeared dazed. Defendant had difficulty opening the car door. The door was open. The defendant locked the doors, then unlocked the doors again. The defendant had bloodshot and glassy eyes, his speech was slurred. The defendant was fumbling with the paper work. The defendant had two insurance cards." Id. at 17-18. There was a cool beer found in respondent's trunk. Id. at 18-20.

Respondent preserved his previous objections to the admission of the breath test results and asserted the breath test affidavit was inadmissible because Breath Test Technician Rebecca Smith was unavailable for deposition and/or subpoena. <u>Id.</u> at 19-20, 27-29. The trial court rejected resondent's argument and admitted the breath test affidavit into evidence. <u>Id.</u> at 40. At the conclusion of the non-jury trial, the county court found respondent guilty of DUI and sentenced him to the mandatory minimum. Id. at 63.

<u>- 8 -</u>

Respondent appealed his conviction and sentence to the circuit court. On appeal, respondent argued that "the unavailability of the breath technician at trial violates Appellant's right to confrontation." (R.E. C, p. 6). The State argued the trial court's ruling was proper under the Fourth District's decision in Gehrmann v. State, 650 So. 2d 1021 (Fla. 4th DCA 1995), and that respondent "has not shown that he did not have the opportunity to subpoena the technician." (R.E. D, p. iv-1, 5). The circuit court initially entered an opinion reversing respondent's conviction and sentence based upon Crawford v. Washington, 541 U.S. 36 (2004). (R.E. E). The State filed a Motion for Rehearing and Clarification (R.E. F), and the circuit court (1) granted the State's Motion, and (2) affirmed respondent's conviction and sentence. (R.E. G).

Respondent then filed a petition for writ of certiorari with the Fourth District Court of Appeal. The Fourth District entered a slip opinion granting respondent's petition for writ of certiorari in <u>Belvin v. State</u>, 30 Fla. L. Weekly D 1421 (Fla. 4th DCA Jun. 8, 2005). The State filed an exhaustive motion for rehearing/clarification, rehearing en banc, certification of conflict, and certification of a question of great public importance. The Fourth District subsequently considered the case en banc, affirmed its prior holding, and certified a

<u>-9-</u>

question of great public importance to this Court in <u>Belvin v.</u> <u>State</u>, 922 So. 2d 1046 (Fla. 4th DCA 2006).¹ The State then filed a notice to invoke discretionary jurisdiction with this Court. On April 28, 2006, this Court accepted jurisdiction over the instant case.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

DOES ADMISSION OF THOSE PORTIONS OF THE BREATH TEST AFFIDAVIT PERTAINING то THE BREATH TEST OPERATOR'S PROCEDURES AND OBSERVATIONS ADMINISTERING IN THE BREATH TEST CONSTITUTE TESTIMONIAL EVIDENCE AND VIOLATE THE SIXTH AMENDMENT'S CONFRONTATION CLAUSE IN LIGHT OF THE UNITED STATES SUPREME COURT'S HOLDING IN CRAWFORD V. WASHINGTON, 541 U.S. 36, 124 S.CT. 1354, 158 L.ED. 2D 177 (2004)?

In <u>Belvin</u>, the Fourth District held the circuit court's opinion departed from the essential requirements of law based upon the United States Supreme Court's opinion in <u>Crawford</u> (which was decided more than two years after the trial in this case). In <u>Crawford</u>, the defendant (Crawford) was charged with assault and attempted murder for stabbing a man who allegedly attempted to rape Crawford's wife (Sylvia). Law enforcement

¹ The State would note the Honorable Fred A. Hazouri was a participating panel member in the original opinion in this case. <u>Belvin v. State</u>, 30 Fla. L. Weekly D 1421 (Fla. 4th DCA Jun. 8, 2005). However, Judge Hazouri was subsequently recused from the en banc decision. <u>Belvin v. State</u>, 922 So. 2d 1046 (Fla. 4th DCA 2006).

interrogated Crawford and Sylvia about the incident and obtained statements from both of them. Crawford's account of the attack varied from the description given by Sylvia. At trial, Crawford claimed he acted in self-defense, and Sylvia did not testify because of the state marital privilege.³ The prosecution introduced Sylvia's tape-recorded statement into evidence under the hearsay exception for statements against one's penal interest. Crawford claimed the admission of Sylvia's statement violated his rights under the Confrontation Clause of the United States Constitution.

The trial court admitted Sylvia's statement into evidence because it bore "adequate indicia of reliability" under the United States Supreme Court's decision in Ohio v. Roberts, 448 U.S. 56 (1980). The jury convicted Crawford of assault. The ultimately Washington Supreme Court upheld Crawford's conviction, and the United States Supreme Court granted certiorari to determine whether the prosecution's use of Sylvia's statement violated the Confrontation Clause. Crawford, 541 U.S. at 42. The Supreme Court held that the admission of Sylvia's "testimonial" hearsay statements pursuant to the

³Washington's marital privilege generally bars a spouse from testifying without the other spouse's consent.

"adequate indicia of reliability" test espoused in <u>Roberts</u> violated the Confrontation Clause.

In <u>Crawford</u>, the Supreme Court differentiated between nontestimonial and testimonial hearsay and stated:

> Where nontestimonial hearsay is at issue, it wholly consistent with the is Framers' design to afford the States flexibility in their development of hearsay law - as does Roberts, and as would an approach that exempted such statements from Confrontation Clause scrutiny altogether. Where testimonial evidence is at issue, however, the Sixth Amendment demands what the common law required: unavailability and a prior opportunity for cross-examination.

<u>Crawford</u>, 541 U.S. at 68. The Supreme Court expressly chose not to comprehensively define testimonial hearsay finding only that "it applies at a minimum to prior testimony at a preliminary hearing, before a grand jury, or at a former trial; and to police interrogations." <u>Id.</u> However, many post-<u>Crawford</u> decisions from other jurisdictions have analyzed whether certain hearsay statements, e.g., excited utterances, public records, laboratory reports, etc., remain admissible in the wake of Crawford.

The first step in conducting an analysis under <u>Crawford</u> is to determine whether the statements at issue are "testimonial" in nature. <u>See Crawford</u>, 541 U.S. at 68. If the statements are "non-testimonial" in nature, they are not precluded by the

- 12 -

Supreme Court's decision in <u>Crawford</u>. <u>Id</u>. The breath test affidavits provided for in sections 316.1934(5) and 90.803(8) do not qualify as, nor are they analogous to, the narrow list of "testimonial hearsay" specifically identified in <u>Crawford</u>, i.e., "prior testimony at a preliminary hearing," "prior testimony before a grand jury," "prior testimony at a former trial," or "prior testimony during police interrogations." <u>Id</u>. However, *dicta* in <u>Crawford</u> suggests that certain materials, such as "affidavits, custodial examinations, prior testimony that the defendant was unable to cross-examine" etc., may constitute a "core class" of testimonial statements. Id. at 68.

Breath Test Affidavits Are Not Testimonial

The State asserts that the breath test affidavits provided for in section 316.1934(5), while technically bearing the name "affidavit," do not fall within the "core class of testimonial statements" referred to in <u>Crawford</u>. A close reading of <u>Crawford</u> reveals the principal evil the Confrontation Clause was directed toward was "the civil-law mode of criminal procedure, and particularly its use of *ex parte* examinations as evidence against the accused." <u>Crawford</u>, 541 U.S. at 50. With this particular evil in mind, it is easy to see how the Supreme Court posited that certain statements, such as *ex parte* in court testimony, custodial examinations, prior testimony the defendant

- 13 -

was unable to cross-examine, and "affidavits" (in the general sense of the term),⁴ can be considered "testimonial" in nature. A common thread in these examples of "testimonial" statements is they all generally contemplate an examination of that а declarant and the give-and-take of questions and answers. The breath test affidavits provided for in section 316.1934(5), however, simply involve a technician's observations regarding the administration of a breath test, not the examination of a declarant and the give-and-take of guestions and answers. Accordingly, the breath test affidavits at issue in this case cannot properly be equated with the general meaning of the term "affidavit" as contemplated by Crawford. See State v. Matthews, 11 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 923 (Fla. Sarasota Cty. Ct. July 30, $2004).^{5}$

The breath test affidavits provided for in section 316.1934(5) do not constitute "affidavits" in the general sense because they do not involve an interrogation, or the give-andtake of questions and answers, as the generic term "affidavit"

⁴ "An affidavit is by definition a statement in writing under an oath administered by a duly authorized person." <u>Youngker v.</u> State, 215 So. 2d 318, 321 (Fla. 4th DCA 1968).

⁵ In <u>Matthews</u>, Judge LoGalbo sets forth an exhaustive analysis of this issue. The State submits that the wellreasoned order in <u>Matthews</u> aptly demonstrates that section 316.1934(5) is constitutional and does not run afoul of the United States Supreme Court's decision in Crawford.

A review of the breath test affidavit in this case does. reveals the document is simply a written record of observations made by a breath test operator who administered the test on a pre-printed form. (R.E. B). Since the breath test affidavit was obviously produced in the ordinary course of business, by a person with knowledge, at or near the time of the event, it seems the breath test affidavit is more akin to a "business record" or "public record" than it is to an "affidavit." Id.; § 90.803(6)(a), Fla. Stat. (2003); see also United States v. Cantellano, 430 F.3d 1142 (11th Cir. 2005)("warrant of deportation," which records facts about where, when, and how a deportee left the country, was not testimonial and did not violate the defendant's confrontation clause rights); United States v. Rueda-Rivera, 396 F.3d 678 (5th Cir. 2005)(certificate of non-existence of record created by I.N.S. was properly admitted into evidence because it was akin to a business record); State v. Cutro, 628 S.E.2d 890, 896 (S.C. 2005)("A public record, very much like a business record, is not testimonial and its admission does not violate the defendant's confrontation rights."); State v. Kronich, 128 P.3d 119, 123 Ct. App. 2006) ("Considering the similarity between (Wash. business records and public records and the Crawford reasoning, the trial court did not err in denying suppression [of a cover

- 15 -

letter from the Department of Licensing and an "Order of Revocation" regarding the defendant's license]."); <u>State v.</u> <u>N.M.K.</u>, 118 P.3d 368 (Wash. Ct. App. 2005)(certified letter from Department of Licensing stating that no license had been issued to the defendant was properly admitted into evidence).

The majority opinion in <u>Crawford</u> declares that business records are not testimonial in nature. <u>Crawford</u>, 541 U.S. at 56. In addition, Chief Justice Rhenquist's concurrence notes that "the Court's analysis of 'testimony' excludes at least some hearsay exceptions, such as business records and official records." <u>Id.</u> at 576 (Rhenquist, C.J., concurring). Sections 316.1934(5) and 90.803(8) clearly state that breath test affidavits are public records or reports, which are not "testimonial" statements under <u>Crawford</u>. <u>Id.</u> Thus, the circuit court properly concluded that respondent's Confrontation Clause rights were not violated in this case.

Contrary to respondent's argument below, certain records from law enforcement agencies have long been admissible as public records. <u>See United States v. Union Nacional de</u> <u>Trabajadores</u>, 576 F.2d 388, 390-391 (1st Cir. 1978)("At common law the sheriff's return of service was admissible under the 'official records' exception to the hearsay rule."; certified copy of marshal's return of service which stated he served the

<u>- 16 -</u>

applicable injunction on the defendant was admissible under the public record exception to the hearsay rule). The federal courts have recognized, even post-Crawford, that some records prepared by law enforcement personnel may properly be admitted into evidence at trial under the "public records" hearsay exception. For example, in United States v. Agustino-Hernandez, 14 F.3d 42, 43 (11th Cir. 1994), the Eleventh Circuit Court of Appeals held "that admission of routinely and mechanically kept I.N.S. records" does not violate the "law enforcement exception" to the "public records" exception to the hearsay rule. See also Cantellano, 430 F.3d at 1145 ("a warrant of deportation does not implicate adversarial concerns in the same way or to the same degree as testimonial evidence."); United States v. Salazar-Gonzalez, 445 F.3d 1208 (9th Cir. 2006)(certificate of nonexistence of record created by I.N.S. was properly admitted into evidence because it was a non-testimonial public record); United States v. Mendoza-Orellana, 133 Fed. 68 (4th Cir. Appx. 2005)(admission of certificate of non-existence of record created by I.N.S. should not be considered testimonial hearsay under Crawford); United States v. Brown, 9 F.3d 907, 911 (11th Cir. 1993)(admission of regularly kept property receipts did not violate "law enforcement exception" to the public records hearsay exception).

- 17 -

The rationale behind permitting some records prepared by law enforcement personnel to be admissible at trial was articulated by the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals as follows:

In the case of documents recording routine, objective observations, made as part of the everyday function of the preparing official or agency, the factors likely to cloud the perception of an official engaged in the traditional law enforcement functions more of observation and investigation of crime are simply not present. Due to the lack of any motivation on the part recording official of the to do other than mechanically register an unambiguous factual matter (here, appellant's departure from the country), such records are, like other public documents, inherently reliable.

<u>United States v. Quezada</u>, 754 F.2d 1190, 1194 (5th Cir. 1985). The breath test affidavits provided for in section 316.1934(5) are "routine, objective observations, made as part of the everyday function of the preparing official" and involve a technician mechanically registering an "unambiguous factual matter." <u>Id.</u> Accordingly, breath test affidavits should be deemed admissible under <u>Crawford</u> because (1) they are not testimonial in nature, and (2) they qualify as "public records" under a "firmly rooted" hearsay exception. <u>See id.; Crawford;</u> <u>Cantellano; Rueda-Rivera; Union Nacional de Trabajadores;</u> <u>Cordova v. State</u>, 675 So. 2d 632, 637 (Fla. 3d DCA 1996)(return of service is admissible under the public records exception to the hearsay rule); Cotton States Mut. Ins. Co. v. Turtle Reef

- 18 -

<u>Assocs.</u>, 444 So. 2d 595 (Fla. 4th DCA 1984)(federal decisions construing similar federal rules are persuasive authority).

Although the Crawford decision was rendered in 2004, numerous post-Crawford cases address issues analogous to the one before the Court in the instant case. For example, in State v. Thackaberry, 95 P.3d 1142, 1144 (Ore. Ct. App. 2004), rev. denied, 107 P.3d 27 (Ore. 2005), the defendant (who was convicted of driving under the influence of intoxicants) argued the trial court violated his Confrontation Clause rights by "'permitting the introduction of the laboratory report [confirming the presence of methamphetamine and amphetamine in defendant's urine] without the accompanying testimony of the expert who conducted the urinalysis and wrote the report." The Oregon Court of Appeals, while utilizing a standard of review similar to the one in the instant case, affirmed the defendant's conviction and specifically noted that:

A laboratory report of a toxicology test performed on urine sample neither qualifies as, nor seems analogous to, testimony at a preliminary hearing, before a grand jury, or at a former trial. Nor, at least in any obvious way, is it a statement made during a "police interrogation" or closely analogous to one. On the other hand, a laboratory report may be analogous to--or arguably even the same as--a business or official record, which the Court in Crawford *in dictum* would suggested not subject to be its holding.

<u>- 19 -</u>

Id. at 516(emphasis added).⁶ Similarly, the breath test affidavit provided for in section 316.1934(5) is the same as an official or "public" record, which would not be subject to the holding in Crawford. Id.; Commonwealth v. Verde, 827 N.E.2d 701 (Mass. 2005)(Crawford does not apply to certificates of chemical analysis, which merely state the results of a well-recognized scientific test determining the composition and quantity of the substance); Perkins v. State, 897 So. 2d 457, 464 (Ala. Crim. App. 2005) (autopsy report of murder victim was nontestimonial in nature); State v. Willis, 2006 Ohio App. LEXIS 2105 (Ohio Ct. App. May 9, 2006)(return of service documents admissible as nontestimonial public record); Felix v. State, 2005 Tex. App. LEXIS 9865 (Tex. Ct. App. Nov. 29, 2005)(results of a blood alcohol test do not fall within the categories of testimonial evidence described in Crawford); but see Shiver v. State, 900 So. 2d 615 (Fla. 1st DCA 2005)(admission of breath test affidavit violated Crawford, even when person who administered test testifies at trial, because persons who conducted routine maintenance on the instrument did not testify at trial).²

⁶ The court in <u>Thackaberry</u>, however, refrained from deciding whether the laboratory report was testimonial in nature because the case was resolved upon a "plain error" analysis.

² The State would note that nearly every other court addressing the "maintenance issue" of breath test instruments has ruled contrary to the First District's decision in <u>Shiver</u>. <u>See</u>, <u>e.g.</u>,

<u>Technician Smith's Breath Test Affidavit In</u> This Case Was Admissible Under Crawford

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