IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner

vs.

BRUCE BELVIN,

Respondent.

CASE NO.: SC06-593

L.T. NO.: 4D04-4235

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE FOURTH DISTRICT
COURT OF APPEAL

RESPONDENT'S ANSWER BRIEF

Respectfully submitted,

RICHARD W. SPRINGER, P.A. Attorneys for Petitioner 3003 South Congress Avenue Suite 1A Palm Springs, FL 33461 (561) 433-9500

Catherine Mazzullo, Esquire Florida Bar No. 752312

STATEMENT OF CASE AND FACTS
SUMMARY ARGUMENT
ARGUMENT
POINT I
DOES ADMISSION OF THOSE PORTIONS OF THE BREATH TEST AFFIDAVIT PERTAINING TO THE BREATH TEST OPERATOR'S PROCEDURES AND OBSERVATIONS IN ADMINISTERING THE BREATH TEST CONSTITUTE TESTIMONIAL EVIDENCE AND VIOLATE THE SIXTH AMENDMENT'S CONFRONTATION CLAUSE IN LIGHT OF THE UNITED STATES SUPREME COURT'S HOLDING IN CRAWFORD V. WASHINGTON, 541 U.S. 36 [124 S.Ct. 1354, 158, L.Ed.2d 177] (2004)?
POINT II
THE FOURTH DISTICT COURT OPINION BASED ON THE CONTROLLING LAW OF <u>CRAWFORD V. WASHINGTON</u> PROPERLY HELD THAT THE ADMISSION OF THE BREATH TEST AFFIDAVIT AT RESPONDENT'S CRIMINAL TRIAL VIOLATED HIS CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHT TO CONFRONTATION, THEREFORE THE CIRCUIT COURT SITTING IN ITS APPELLATE CAPACITY AFFIRMED RESPONDENT'S CONVICTION IN VIOLATION OF A "CLEARLY ESTABLISHED PRINCIPLE OF LAW".
CONCLUSION
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE

APPENDIX

- A. <u>BELVIN V. STATE</u>, 922 So2d 1046 (Fla. 4DCA March 8, 2006), rev. granted by <u>State v.</u> Belvin, 928 So2d 336 (Fla. 2006).
- B. <u>BELVIN V. STATE</u>, (15th Judicial Circuit Appellate Decision, Case Number 02-11AC October 4, 2004)(unpublished opinion)

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

Cases Cited Page Number
Allstate Insurance Company v. Kaklamanos, 843 So2d 885 (Fla. 2003)
Baber v. State, 775 So2d 258 (Fla. 2000) 20
Belvin v. State, 11 Fla.L.Weekly Supp. 792 (Fla. 15 th Cir. Ct. July 2004)8
Belvin v. State, 30 Fla.L.Weekly D1421 (Fla. 4 th DCA June 8, 2005)8
<pre>Belvin v. State, 922 So2d 1046 (Fla. 4th DCA 2006), (en banc),rev. granted by State v. Belvin, 928 So2d 335 (Fla. 2006)App. A)</pre>
Blanton v. State, 880 So2d 798 (Fla. 5 th DCA 2004) 25
<u>Connor v. State</u> , 748 So2d 950 (Fla. 1999)
<pre>Contreras v. State, 910 So2d 901 (Fla. 4th DCA 2005) rev. granted by State v. Contreras, 924 So2d 810 (Fla. March 3, 2006)</pre>
<pre>Crawford v. Washington, 541 U.S. 36 [124 S.Ct. 1354, 158, L.Ed.2d 177] (2004) passim</pre>
<pre>Davis v. Washington, 547 U.S. ,126 S.Ct. 2266, 165 L.Ed 2d 224(2006)</pre>
Department of Children and Families v. F.L. 880 So2d 602 (Fla. 2004)
<u>Griffith v. Kentucky</u> , 479 U.S. 314, 107 S.Ct. 708, 93 L.Ed.2d 649 (1987) 4,28
<u>Hammon v. Indiana</u> , 547 U.S. , 126 S.Ct. 2266, 165 L.Ed2d 224(2006)
<u>Idaho v. Wright</u> , 497 U.S. 805, 110 S.Ct. 3139, 111 L.Ed. 2d 638 (1990)

Johnson v. State, 929 So2d 4(Fla. 2 DCA 2005),
rev. granted by <u>State v. Johnson</u> , 924 So2d 810 (Fla. March 6, 2006)
<u>Lopez v. State</u> , 888 So2d 693 (Fla. 1 st DCA 2004) 25
<pre>Ohio v. Roberts, 448 U.S. 56, 100 S.Ct. 2531, 65 L.Ed2d 597(1980)</pre>
Rhode Island v. Innis, 446 U.S. 291, 100 S.Ct. 1682,64 L.Ed.2d 297 (1980)
<u>Shiver v. State</u> , 900 So2d 615 (Fla. 1 st DCA 2005)17
<u>Smith v. State</u> , 598 So2d 1063 (Fla. 1992) 28
<u>Sobota v. State</u> ,So2d(Fla. 2 nd DCA July 28, 2006), 31 Fla.L.Weekly D2012 (Fla. 2 nd DCA 2006)
<pre>State v. Hosty, So2d (Fla. 2006), 31 Fla.L. Weekly S369 (Fla. 2006)</pre>
<pre>White v. Illinois, 502 U.S. 346, 112 S.Ct. 736, 116 L.Ed.2d 848 (1992)</pre>
Williams v. State, So2d Fla. 2 nd DCA July 28, 2006), 31 Fla.L.Weekly D2013(Fla. 2 nd DCA July 2006)17
Constitutional Provisions
Article I, Section 16, Florida Constitution
Amendment VI, United States Constitution
Statutes and Rules
Section 90.803(8), Florida Statutes

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Respondent, BRUCE BELVIN, was the defendant in the trial court, Appellant before the Circuit Court, and was the Petitioner before the Fourth District Court of Appeal. Respondent will be referred to as "Respondent" or by name. Petitioner, State of Florida, was the prosecuting authority in the trial court, the Appellee before the Circuit Court and the Respondent before the Fourth District Court of Appeal. Petitioner will be referred to as "Petitioner" or "the State".

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The pertinent history and facts are set out in the decision of the lower tribunal, which can be found at Belvin v. State, 922 So2d 1046 (Fla. 4th DCA 2006), (en banc)(App. A):

Respondent was arrested and charged with Driving Under the Influence of Alcohol to the extent his normal faculties were impaired contrary to Section 316.193(1), Florida Statutes. Respondent was transported to a breath testing facility. There, he submitted to a breath test. Respondent's breath test results measured 0.165, 0.144 and 0.155. A trial by judge commenced on February 5, 2002 before the Honorable Paul D'Amico. At trial, the arresting officer testified that he made the traffic stop and

requested the breath samples. The breath test technician, Rebecca Smith, administered the breath test and prepared the breath test affidavit, but she did not testify at Respondent objected to the introduction of the breath test affidavit without the breath test technician being present at trial and subject to cross-examination. Respondent argued that the affidavit was hearsay and that he had a statutory right to subpoena the technician for trial, pursuant to Section 316.1934(5), Florida Statutes. The Trial Court overruled Respondent's objection admitted the affidavit into evidence. The Trial Court found Respondent guilty of DUI and sentenced him to the penalties mandated by statute.

Respondent appealed the conviction and sentence to the Circuit Court of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit. On appeal Respondent argued that the confrontation clause under the Federal and Florida Constitutions and the language of §36.1934(5), Florida Statutes, provided the Respondent the right to confront and cross examine at trial the breath technician who administered the breath test and prepared the breath test affidavit prior to the admission of the breath test results. The unavailability of the breath technician at trial violated the Respondent's right to confrontation.

The Circuit Court initially reversed the County Court conviction and ruled that the breath test affidavit is testimonial hearsay and therefore, inadmissible because Respondent did not have an opportunity to cross examine the breath test technician. Belvin v. State, 11 Fla.L.Weekly Supp. 792 (Fla. 15th Cir. Ct. July 2004). On rehearing, however, the Court affirmed Respondent's conviction holding that the breath test affidavit is not testimonial in nature, and therefore the confrontation clause does not apply. Belvin v. State, (Fla. 15th Judicial Circuit Appellate Decision, Case Number 02-11AC October 4, 2004)(unpublished opinion)(App. B).

Respondent sought certiorari review in the Fourth District Court of Appeal of the decision of the Circuit Court rendered in its Appellate capacity, affirming the conviction and sentence. On June 8, 2005 the Fourth District Court of Appeals issued an opinion granting the Writ of Certiorari and quashing the Circuit Court decision.

Belvin v. State, 30 Fla.L.Weekly D1421(Fla. 4th DCA June 8, 2005). On rehearing, the June 8, 2005 opinion was withdrawn and substituted with the Fourth District's En Banc opinion dated March 8, 2006. The Fourth District affirmed its prior holding, and certified a question of great public importance to this Court in Belvin v. State, 922 So2d 1046

(Fla. 4th DCA 2006). (App. A). The Petitioner then filed a Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction with this Court. On April 28, 2006 this Court accepted jurisdiction.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Point One

The breath test affidavit is generated by law enforcement for use at a later criminal trial and when admitted into evidence establishes an essential element of Driving Under the Influence. The breath test affidavit falls into the "core class of testimonial statements" referred to in Crawford. Where testimonial hearsay is at issue, the Confrontation Clause bars admission of testimonial statements of a witness who did not appear at trial unless he was unavailable to testify and the defendant had a prior opportunity for cross examination. Admission of the breath test affidavit without establishing the bright line test of unavailability and prior opportunity for cross examination violated Respondent's constitutional right to confront the witness.

POINT II

"Clearly established law" can be derived from recent controlling case law. At the time the Fourth District Court of Appeals decided <u>Belvin v. State</u>, 922 So2d 1046 (Fla. 4th DCA 2006), <u>Crawford</u> was controlling case law. The

Fourth District Court of Appeals was bound by <u>Crawford</u> and properly held that admission of the breath test affidavit at trial violated Respondent's constitutional right to confrontation.

ARGUMENT

POINT ONE

DOES ADMISSION OF THOSE PORTIONS OF THE BREATH TEST AFFIDAVIT PERTAINING TO THE BREATH TEST OPERATOR'S PROCEDURES AND OBSERVATIONS ADMINISTERING TEST THEBREATH CONSTITUTE TESTIMONIAL EVIDENCE AND VIOLATE THESIXTH AMENDMENT'S CONFRONTATION CLAUSE IN LIGHT OF THE UNITED STATES SUPREME COURT'S HOLDING IN CRAWFORD V. WASHINGTON, 541 U.S. 36 [124 S.Ct. 1354, 158, L.Ed.2d 177] (2004)?

The Trial Court accepted the breath test affidavit into evidence over Respondent's objection that the breath technician and author of the breath test affidavit was not present at trial and subject to cross examination, pursuant to the public records exception to hearsay. Sections 316.1934(5); 90.803(8), Florida Statutes. The Sixth Amendment of the United States Constitution provides: "In all criminal prosecutions, the accused shall enjoy the right...to be confronted with the witnesses against him..." This right to confrontation is applicable to the states through the Fourteenth Amendment, see Idaho v. Wright, 497 U.S. 805, 110 S.Ct. 3139, 111 L.Ed. 2d 638 (1990), and is

repeated in Article I, Section 16 of the Florida Constitution, which states: "In all criminal prosecutions the accused...shall have the right...to confront at trial adverse witnesses....". This right, the Fourth District Court held was violated in the instant matter. U.S. Const. Amend.VI; Florida Constitution Article I Section 16 (emphasis added). A District Court's decision declaring a State Statute unconstitutional is subject to a denovo standard of review. State v. Hosty, So2d (Fla. 2006), 31 Fla.L.Weekly S369 (Fla. 2006); Fla. Department of Children and Families v. F.L. 880 So2d 602 (Fla. 2004).

In <u>Crawford v. Washington</u>, 541 U.S. 36 (2004), the Supreme Court overruled the reliability test previously established in <u>Ohio v. Roberts</u>, 448 U.S. 56 (1980), for determining the admissibility of testimonial hearsay. The <u>Crawford</u> Court examined the roots of the Confrontation Clause, a "bedrock procedural guarantee that applies to both federal and state prosecutions", and the evils it sought to prevent. <u>Crawford</u>, 541 U.S. 36 at 42. The Supreme Court also applied a textual analysis, explaining that the clause itself references "witnesses" against the accused and a "witness" is someone who "bears testimony... "testimony", in turn, is typically a solemn declaration or affirmation made for the purpose of establishing or proving

some fact". Id at 51, (quoting 1 Noah Webster, an American Dictionary of the English Language (1828)). Using this definition, the Court distinguished between casual remarks and "formal statements to government officers". Id. The formal statements made to government officers encompass testimonial statements and are specifically the type of statements the framers intended to be subject to the Confrontation Clause. Id at 53-54. The Supreme Court in Crawford established a bright-line rule when testimonial hearsay is at issue by holding that the provision of the Confrontation Clause bars "admission of testimonial statements of a witness who did not appear at trial unless he was unavailable to testify, and the defendant had a prior opportunity for cross examination." Id at 53-54. Therefore, to answer the certified questions presented, this Court must first decide whether those portions of the breath test affidavit that pertain to the breath test operator's procedures and observations in administering the breath test, and presented at trial to establish an element of Driving Under the Influence is testimonial within Crawford.

THE PORTIONS OF THE BREATH TEST AFFIDAVIT PERTAINING TO THE BREATH TEST OPERATOR'S PROCEDURES AND OBSERVATIONS IN ADMINISTERING THE BREATH TEST ARE TESTIMONIAL EVIDENCE

Breath testing operators are required to follow certain procedures to ensure the reliability of the breath test results, including maintaining a breath test log, observing the defendant for a fixed period of time and analyzing the requisite number of samples within a specified time frame. The affidavit has several components and includes information pertaining to the procedures followed and the observations made during the breath testing process as well as documentation regarding the maintenance and inspection of the breath test instrument. The affidavit is generated by law enforcement for use at a later criminal trial and when admitted into evidence establishes a critical element of Driving Under the Influence. (See Belvin v. State, 922 So2d 1046 at 1050-1051(Fla. 4th DCA 2006).

The <u>Crawford</u> Court provided a generic definition of testimonial in the textual analysis of the Confrontation Clause, explaining that the clause itself references "witnesses" against the accused and a "witness" is someone who "bears testimony... "testimony", in turn, is typically "a solemn declaration or affirmation made for the purpose of establishing or proving some fact." Crawford 541 U.S. 36,

(2004). Declining to spell out a comprehensive 51 definition of testimonial the Court stated, "whatever else the term covers, it applies at a minimum to prior testimony at a preliminary hearing, before a grand jury, or at a former trial; and to police interrogations". Id at 67. discussing interrogations by police officers, the Court stated in a footnote, we use the term "interrogation" in its colloquial, rather than any technical legal sense. Cf. Rhode Island v. Innis, 446 U.S. 291, 300-301, 100 S.Ct. 1682, 64 L.Ed.2d 297 (1980). Just as various definitions of "testimonial" exist, one can imagine various definitions of "interrogation" and we need not select among them in this case. The Court further commented that Sylvia Crawford's recorded statement, knowingly given in response structured police questioning, qualifies under conceivable definition. Crawford, 541 U.S. 36, 53 (2004). As recent as June 2006 the United States Supreme Court in Davis v. Washington, considered police interrogations during a 911 call and in Hammon v. Indiana, considered police interrogations when responding to a domestic disturbance call. 547 U.S. _____, 126 S.Ct, 2266, 165 L.Ed2d244(2006). Without classifying all conceivable statements as either testimonial or non-testimonial the Court held that statements are non-testimonial when made in

the course of police interrogations under circumstances objectively indicating that the primary purpose interrogation is to enable police assistance to meet an ongoing emergency. Id. The Court held that statements are testimonial when the circumstances objectively indicated that there is no such ongoing emergency, and the primary purpose of the interrogation is to establish or prove past events potentially relevant to later criminal prosecution. As applied to the breath test affidavit in the instant case, the fact that the breath test affidavit prepared post arrest in a non-emergency setting, for the primary purpose of establishing or proving a defendant's blood alcohol content for future presentation in a criminal trial qualifies the breath test affidavit as testimonial hearsay.

The Confrontation Clause is concerned with testimonial hearsay and the definition of testimonial set forth in Crawford includes interrogations by law enforcement officers as statements falling squarely within that class. The breath test affidavit is a series of structured questions developed by law enforcement and answered by the breath technician who administers the breath test and records specific observations made at the time of testing the accused. This affidavit is made for the purpose of

proving an element of the crime at trial. The breath test affidavit is testimonial hearsay by definition.

While the United States Supreme Court declined to provide a complete definition of testimonial hearsay, its partial definition clearly encompasses the breath test affidavit.

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